
Page 1 of 2 
 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING  
KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 

 
Meeting Date:      Wednesday, April 9, 2025 
Time:        5:30 p.m. 
Location:       District Administration Building   
Remote Viewing Access:     https://bit.ly/4iEh5vu 
Remote Public Comment Sign-Up Form:  https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk 
Interpretación al español estará disponible.  
 

AGENDA  
 

1. Call to Order – 5:30 PM       GABE GALBRAITH 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
  
3. Communications from Parents, Staff, and District Residents 
 
4. Consent Items 
 Approval of Board Minutes 

A. Minutes of School Board Meeting March 26, 2025 
 

Human Resources Reports  
A. Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
 

 Business Office Items 
A. Budget Status Report Ending February 28, 2025 
B. Payroll and Vouchers Ending February 28, 2025 

 
5. Communications Follow-up 

 
6. Superintendent/Board Member Report 
  
7. Reports and Discussions  

A. Annual Human Resources Report                                DR. TOM BRILLHART 
 
8. Unfinished Business 

None 
 

9. New Business 
None 

 
  

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2F4iEh5vu&data=05%7C02%7Cpatty.lord%40ksd.org%7C8cd91155baff40eb578408dd6d4a36bf%7C00948c2509684d128618b9e148ccfe77%7C0%7C0%7C638786887703347184%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=h0VMdzL8QJ4KK%2Ft7JdUFEtBsD919eWKxYjliqgppcX0%3D&reserved=0
https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk


KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
DR. TRACI PIERCE 
SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 

Page 2 of 2 

10. Next Meeting Agenda 
 

A. Study Session 
1. Preliminary Levy Planning 
 

B. Business Meeting  
1. Preliminary Budget 2025-26 
2. Online Learning Platform/Materials Recommendation 
3. Artificial Intelligence Guidance  
4. Digital Citizenship Learning Materials 
5. Transportation – Annual Bus Purchase Plan 

 
11. Executive Session (Approximately 30 minutes) 

A. Per RCW 42.30.110 (1) (i) Legal Issue 
 

12. Other Business as Authorized by Law 
 
13. Adjourn 

 
 



 KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 Administration Building 
March 26, 2025 

 
 M I N U T E S 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 

Board Members:  Gabe Galbraith, President of the Board; Micah Valentine, Vice 
President of the Board; Brittany Gledhill, Legislative Representative of the Board; Dr. 
Josh Miller, Board Member; Mike Connors, Board Member; Annie Maltos, Student 
Representative to the Board; and Dr. Traci Pierce, Superintendent and Secretary of the 
Board.  

 
Student Representative-Elect: Diego Anguiano 
 
Cabinet Members: Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education; Alyssa St. 
Hilaire, Assistant Superintendent of Teaching & Learning; Dr. Thomas Brillhart, 
Assistant Superintendent of Operations; Robyn Chastain, Executive Director of 
Communications and Public Relations; and Eric Veach, Executive Director of 
Information Technology.  
 
Other Guest(s):   Ryan Jones, Capital Projects Manager 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 President Gabe Galbraith called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and led the Pledge of 

Allegiance with approximately 53 online and in-person staff members and guests. 
 
RECOGNITION 
 
 National Music in Our Schools Month 

 
Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce thanked the Fuerza Elementary Guitar Ensemble, led by 
Ruby Perez, Music Teacher, for performing before the Board meeting and expressed 
gratitude to the Board for its support of the district's music programs.   

 
 Winter Sports and Activities 
 
 Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education Matt Scott recognized and introduced the high 

school athletic directors from Kennewick, Kamiakin, and Southridge. Athletic directors 
introduced coaches, who recognized student participants from the following athletics and 
activities: Kennewick High School wrestling and bowling; Kamiakin High School for 
bowling and wrestling; and Southridge High School wrestling. 

 
 School Retirees Appreciation Week 
 

Superintendent Dr. Pierce recognized President Dottie Stevens of the Benton-Franklin 
Retirees’ Association, along with President Victoria Russell. Dr. Pierce read Governor 
Ferguson’s proclamation declaring March 17-23, 2025, School Retirees Appreciation 
Week. Ms. Stevens and Ms. Russell shared a few words with the Board. 



Minutes 
March 26, 2025 
Page 2 
 
 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM PARENTS, STAFF, AND RESIDENTS 
  
 Ben Anderson commented on Title IX and thanked the board for their willingness to 

discuss the issue. He encouraged the Board to remain strong and courageous in their 
efforts to protect girls in schools.  

 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
 Motion by Micah Valentine to approve the consent items as presented. 
 
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Dr. Miller  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 The consent items were as follows: 
 

• Minutes of School Board Meeting March 12, 2025 
• Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
• Budget Status Report Ending January 31, 2025 
• Payroll and Vouchers Ending January 31, 2025 
• Tri-Tech Skills Center Core Modernization Construction Bid 
• Recommendation of Instructional Materials 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FOLLOW-UP 
 

 Superintendent Dr. Pierce followed up on the public comment shared during the last Board 
meeting regarding PE credit. She shared that the topic would be discussed later tonight in 
the PE presentation. 

 
SUPERINTENDENT/BOARD MEMBER REPORT 
 
 Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce reported speaking at the Desert Hills Middle School 8th-

grade Honors Breakfast. She also shared that she participated in a Learning Walk at 
Kennewick High and highlighted that the bond refinance was completed. Dr. Pierce 
stated that she was honored to emcee both nights of the Elementary Music Festival. 
Finally, she shared that she attended the Crystal Apple Awards, where Nathan Allington, 
Tri-Tech Skills Center Fire Fighter Instructor and a former Marine, was celebrated as the 
2025 Kennewick School District Crystal Apple Award Winner. 

  
 Board Member Dr. Josh Miller congratulated the bowling teams and their coaches for their 

consistent success. He reported visiting Endeavor, Legacy, and Phoenix high schools and 
stated that he is continuing work on organizing a foundation for Kennewick schools. Dr. 
Miller encouraged everyone to volunteer in our community and schools.  



Minutes 
March 26, 2025 
Page 3 
 
 
 
 Board Member Brittany Gledhill reported attending track meets, visiting Edison and Vista 

Elementaries, and attending Phoenix High School’s Expo Day. She also shared that she 
participated in a Just-Serve volunteer fair and encouraged others to volunteer. Mrs. Gledhill 
provided a legislative update, reporting that Senate bills for MSOC special education remain 
in discussion. Additionally, she highlighted the fact that Senate Bill 5797 is being marketed 
as proceeds going directly and solely to public education, but in reality, the bill states that 
the funds would be allocated to the state’s general fund. 

 
 Board Member Micah Valentine reported on a project that he is working on focused on food 

and nutrition for students. He stated that he believes the better food students receive, the 
better they will perform. He also commented on Title IX and parental rights. 

  
 President Gabe Galbraith reported attending the Ridge View Elementary School PBIS 

awards assembly.  
 
REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS  
 
 Preliminary Budget 2025 - 2026 
  

Assistant Superintendent of Operations Dr. Tom Brillhart presented information on the 
Transportation Vehicle Fund and the Debt Service Fund. He reported on the recent 2015 
bond refinance, noting the sale date of March 18 and closure date of April 3, 2025.  Dr. 
Brillhart provided a budget timeline showing June 18 as the date for Board adoption of 
the 2025 – 2026 budget. 

 
 Asset Preservation and Capital Projects Update 
  

Assistant Superintendent of Operations, Dr. Tom Brillhart, and Capital Projects Manager 
Ryan Jones presented the district’s Asset Preservation Program, demonstrating the 
district’s commitment to maintaining its buildings through upgrades to building 
infrastructure. Mr. Jones reviewed the building condition scores and explained the 
scoring evaluation process. He then provided a brief update on the $45M Tri-Tech Core 
Modernization project. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

Recommendation: K-5 English Language Arts Materials 
 
Assistant Superintendent of Teaching and Learning Alyssa St. Hilaire reviewed the adoption 
policy and procedure, as well as the evaluation and selection process, and recommended the 
adoption of the Amplify Core Knowledge Language Arts (CKLA) core materials for grades 
K-5. 
 

 Dr. Josh Miller made a motion to approve the Amplify Core Knowledge Language Arts core 
materials for grades K-5. 

 



Minutes 
March 26, 2025 
Page 4 
 
 

 Advisory Vote: Annie Maltos  Yes 
 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Dr. Miller  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 Recommendation: K-12 Physical Education Materials 
  

Assistant Superintendent of Teaching and Learning Alyssa St. Hilaire recommended 
renewing the current materials of Focus Fitness: Five for Life for adoption by the Board for 
K-12 physical education. She also shared policy and procedures outlining options for 
earning the physical education credit required for graduation.  

 
 Micah Valentine made a motion to approve the renewal of Focus Fitness: Five for Life core 

Physical Education materials for grades K-12. 
 
 Advisory Vote: Annie Maltos  Yes 
 

   Roll call vote:  Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Dr. Miller  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 Title IX Complaint Review 
  

President Galbraith presented a formal complaint letter addressed to the U.S. Department of 
Education, Office of Civil Rights, regarding a Title IX Complaint against Washington State, 
State Superintendent Chris Reykdal, Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction 
(OSPI), and the Washington Interscholastic Activities Association (WIAA). The Board 
discussed submitting the letter and voted on whether to do so.  

 
 Advisory Vote: Annie Maltos  Yes 
 

   Roll call vote:  Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Dr. Miller  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Abstain 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 



Minutes 
March 26, 2025 
Page 5 
 
 
 
NEXT MEETING AGENDA 
 
 The Board reviewed items for the next meeting agenda:  
 

A. Preliminary Budget 2025 – 2026 
B. Annual Staff/Human Resources Update 

  
OTHER BUSINESS AS AUTHORIZED BY LAW. 
 
 There being no further business, the Board adjourned at 7:52 p.m. 
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________ 
RECORDING SECRETARY PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 
 
Approved:  April 9, 2025 



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

Exhibit A: Lists new employment contracts, requests for leaves of absence, and terminations which have occurred for certificated 
employees since the last meeting of the Board of Directors.

Name School Position Justification FTE Date

William Thompson Tri Tech Teacher - HS  Milewski retirement 1.0 2025-26
Kaitlyn Toth Special Services Psychologist Antles resignation 1.0 2025-26

Julie Sumsion DHMS Teacher - MS Requesting LOA 1.0 2025-26

Jordan Linares Amon Creek Teacher - Elem Requesting LOA 1.0
Eff. 6/3-
6/12/25

Diana Razo Park MS Teacher - MS Requesting to extend LOA 1.0
Eff. 2/26 - 

5/2/25

Angela Escobar SrHS Teacher - HS Spec Srvcs 1.0 Eff. 4/7/2025
Cheryl Spradling Cascade Teacher - Elem 1.0 Eff. 4/8/2025
Shantel Rivera SSV to Sage Crest Teacher Elem to Librarian Tobery move 1.0 2025-26

RESIGNATIONS

IN DISTRICT 
TRANSFERS

DATE: Wednesday, April 9, 2025

EXHIBIT A 

NEW POSITONS

REHIRE

REPLACEMENT

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
REPLACEMENT

RETIREMENTS

4/9/2025 Page 1



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Name School Position Justification Hours Date

Janet Korsvik Highlands Para/FP To sub para 6.0 3/28/2025

Dana Bugher Transportation Bus Attendant 3.58 3/28/2025

Jacquelyne Brazell-

Denison
Southgate Para/FP/LAP/BE 6.3 4/11/2025

Angela Lilyblade Sunset View Cook To sub NS worker 4.0 4/16/2025

Eric Rodriguez IT IT Field Tech/Help Desk Start date change 8.0 6/16/2025

Wayne Weaver Transportation Bus Driver 5.58 4/10/2025

Michael Bamford KDC Custodian/Swing 8.0 7/31/2025

Rebecca Peters Park Cook 6.0 8/20/2025

RETURN FROM LOA

Department New Assignment Old Assignment Date

NEW POSITIONS

EXHIBIT B: Lists new employment personnel actions and terminations for classified employees that have occurred since the last meeting of the Board of Directors

EXHIBIT B

DATE: April 9, 2025

REPLACEMENT

CHANGES IN ASSIGNMENT
Name

REHIRE

TERMINATION

RESIGNED FROM LOA

RESIGNATION

RETIREMENT

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

4/9/2025 AM



Page 1 
 

 
EXTRACURRICULAR 

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS 
Exhibit C:  Lists new employment contracts and terminations that have occurred for supplemental contracts since the last meeting of the Board of Directors. 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   Wednesday, April 9, 2025 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 
SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS 

ELECTIONS AND TERMINATIONS 
NAME SCHOOL POSITION JUSTIFICATION HOURS DATE 

NEW POSITIONS      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Randy Hoover Kamiakin HS Assistant Track Emergency Hire (.5 FTE) – Due to Numbers  

2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Aiden Cain Kamiakin HS Assistant Track Emergency Hire (.5 FTE) – Due to Numbers  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
       2024-2025 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
       2024-2025 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS DATE 
     2024-2025 Sc Yr 
     2024-2025 Sc Yr 
     2024-2025 Sc Yr 
     2024-2025 Sc Yr 
     2024-2025 Sc Yr 
RESIGNATIONS NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS   

 Sydney Freitag SOUTHRIDGE HS Asst Volleyball Resigned 2025-26 Sc Yr 

 Laura Stephens Southridge HS Asst Basketball Resigned 2025-26 Sc Yr 
 Laura Stephens Southridge HS Asst Volleyball Resigned 2025-26 Sc Yr 
 Antonio Ramos Kennewick HS Asst Wrestling Resigned 2025-26 Sc Yr 
 Justice Manzo Sanchez Kennewick HS Asst Wrestling Resigned 2025-26 Sc Yr 

 

































 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: April 9, 2025 

 

 

 

Topic Annual Staff/Human Resources Report  
 

Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
 2. All students are engaged learners   
 3. All students are ready for their future 
X 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

Each year a human resources update is provided to the Board. The presentation highlights 
efforts the district is making to achieve our staff-focused strategic goal. Updated data, 
including information from the annual staff survey, is shared.  

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

X Hold discussion 
 Provide direction 
 Make decision 

 
 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role    Policy   

X System accountability  
 Fiscal oversight  
X Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Are there particular areas or efforts on which the Board would like to see additional 
focus in the 2025-26 school year?  

Next Steps  • N/A  



Annual Human Resources Report 

April 9, 2025



Topic 
Overview 





Presentation Outline

Staff Recruitment, Hiring, and 
Retention

Current Staff Statistics and Data
Annual Recruiting Efforts

Long-Term Recruiting Strategies

Staff Value, Voice, and 
Recognition

Annual Staff Survey Data
Staff Recognition Efforts

Staff Wellness Committee

Staff Professional Growth and 
Performance Evaluation 

Systems for Professional Growth and 
Evaluation 



Staff Recruitment, Hiring, and Retention



People: Our Greatest Resource 

85.4% of 
expenditure 

budget 



KSD Teaching Staff 

Source: OSPI Report Card https://reportcard.ospi.k12.wa.us/ReportCard/ViewSchoolOrDistrict/100116

https://reportcard.ospi.k12.wa.us/ReportCard/ViewSchoolOrDistrict/100116


KSD Teaching Staff 

Source: OSPI Report Card https://reportcard.ospi.k12.wa.us/ReportCard/ViewSchoolOrDistrict/100116

https://reportcard.ospi.k12.wa.us/ReportCard/ViewSchoolOrDistrict/100116


Teacher 
Demographics

Source: OSPI Report Card https://reportcard.ospi.k12.wa.us/ReportCard/ViewSchoolOrDistrict/100116

https://reportcard.ospi.k12.wa.us/ReportCard/ViewSchoolOrDistrict/100116


Student  
Demographics

Source: OSPI Report Card https://reportcard.ospi.k12.wa.us/ReportCard/ViewSchoolOrDistrict/100116

https://reportcard.ospi.k12.wa.us/ReportCard/ViewSchoolOrDistrict/100116


Staff-Focused Goal
Performance Indicators and Targets 



Focus: Healthy, functional retention

https://files.eric.ed.gov/fulltext/ED577276.pdf

https://files.eric.ed.gov/fulltext/ED577276.pdf


Teacher Mobility, 
Retention, and 
Turnover Data 

Factors to Consider:
• Number of teachers who leave the 

district each year
• Number of teacher who move buildings 

each year 
• Contractual status/evaluation status
• How long each teacher has been 

teaching 
• How long each teacher has been in the 

current building 
• Contractual status/evaluation status
• Reason for moving or leaving 



Teacher Retention Rate: New Methodology 

May 2024 NCES Study
Annual Cohort Study Based Upon the following 
criteria categories: Stayers, Movers, Leavers

• Stayers: teachers who stayed in the same 
position at the same school

• Movers: teachers who moved to work as a 
teacher at a different school in the school year

• Leavers: teachers who left the district 

Source: https://nces.ed.gov/programs/coe/indicator/slc/teacher-turnover

https://nces.ed.gov/programs/coe/indicator/slc/teacher-turnover


2019-20 KSD Teacher Cohort 
Stayers Movers Leavers

2019-20 95.8% 0% 4.2%
2020-21 77.3% 18.2% 4.5%
2021-22 81% 9.5% 9.5%
2022-23 94.4% 5.6% 0%
2023-24 100% 0% 0%
2024-25 85.7% 14.3% 0%

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00% 100.00%

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

2023-24

2019-20

Stayers Movers Leavers



2020-21 KSD Teacher Cohort 
Stayers Movers Leavers

2020-21 100% 0% 0%
2021-22 87.5% 0% 12.5%

2022-23 71.4% 28.57% 0%
2023-24 69.2% 15.38% 15.4%
2024-25 90.9% 9.09% 0%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

2020-21

Stayers Movers Leavers



2021-22 KSD Teacher Cohort 
Stayers Movers Leavers

2021-22 92.3% 0% 7.7%
2022-23 86.4% 13.64% 0%
2023-24 86.4% 13.64% 0%
2024-25 90.9% 9.09% 0%

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00% 100.00%

2021-22

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

2021-22

Stayers Movers Leavers



2022-23 KSD Teacher Cohort 
Stayers Movers Leavers

2022-23 93.8% 0% 6.3%
2023-24 80% 6.67% 13.3%
2024-25 96.2% 3.85% 0%

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00% 100.00%

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

2022-23

Stayers Movers Leavers



2023-24 KSD Teacher Cohort 

Stayers Movers Leavers
2023-24 92% 8% 0%
2024-25 87% 13% 0%

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00% 100.00%

2023-24

2024-25

2023-24

Stayers Movers Leavers



2019-20 to 2024-25 Total

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

2019-20 to 2024-25

Stayers Movers Leavers

95.3% 
retention rate 
for 2023-24

Note: 2024-25 data is to date



Ongoing Annual Recruiting Strategies 

• Annual regional and state-wide job fairs
• Annual KSD job fair in March and May

• All buildings are represented
• Average attendance is over 150 

candidates from universities and 
other districts

• Direct contact with universities for “hard 
to fill” positions (special education, 
bilingual education, etc.)

• Dedicated webpages for recruiting/hiring-
including testimonials from minority 
teaching and administrative staff

• Posting of jobs on state/regional 
websites

• Teaching Academy/Teaching Bridge 
ProgramThis Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA

https://www.picserver.org/highway-signs2/r/recruitment.html
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/


Ongoing Support and Retention Strategies

• Peer Assistance and 
Resource (PAR) program
oThree Consulting Peer 

Educators serving 62 KSD 
educators in their first and 
second year of teaching 

• Professional Learning 
Communities 



Washington Education Association-Apprenticeship Residency in Teaching (WEA-ART) 

New Recruiting, Support, and Retention 
Strategy



18-months/2,000 hours on-the-job learning 

WEA-ART Program 



Staff Value, Voice, and Recognition 



Staff-Focused Goal
Performance Indicators and Targets 



Annual Staff Survey 

Designed to help assess areas of strength and areas 
for improvement, aligned with our staff-focused 
strategic goal

o Spring 2021: 1,163 staff responses
o Spring 2022: 1,550 staff responses 
o Spring 2023: 1,627 staff responses
o Spring 2024: 1,311 staff responses
o Spring 2025:          Survey deployed April 7



All Staff 
Survey 

Questions 

1. I feel like I'm a part of my building/department

2. I feel connected to my co-workers

3. I know what my supervisor expects of me

4. I feel safe at work

5. I have opportunities to connect with colleagues

6. I am provided opportunities to learn and grow in my job

7. I feel a sense of belonging at work

8. My supervisors value my feedback

9. My supervisors are invested in the success of the team

10. My co-workers and I are held to high standards of professionalism and 
performance

11. I am happy at work

12. I am included in the activities of my building/department

13. I find my work meaningful

14. I am treated with respect in my job

15. My job utilizes my skills and abilities

16. I feel like we have a positive culture in my building/department

Response Scale:
• Strongly agree
• Agree
• Disagree
• Strongly disagree 



Survey Highlights
All Staff Questions 

Question 2024 
Results

% strongly 
agree/agree 

2023 
Results

% strongly 
agree/agree 

 

2022 
Results
% strongly 
agree/agree 

 
I feel safe at work 85.51% 85.56% 88.58%
I am happy at work 85.35% 87.52% 83.22%
I feel a sense of belonging at work 86.27% 88.26% 73.09%*
I am provided opportunities to learn and grow in my job 85.59% 86.67% 81.29%
My supervisors value my feedback 80.78% 83.16% 76.65%
My co-workers and I are held to high standards of 
professionalism and performance

86.42% 86.90% 83.91%

I know what my supervisor expects of me 90.54% 90.66% 88.52%

*Reverse wording on 2022 survey



Additional 
Questions for 
Instructional 

Staff

1. My school has high expectations for student academics

2. My school has high expectations for student behavior 

3. The adults at my school respect students 

4. The students at my school respect adults 

5. I believe every student, regardless of their background and life circumstances, is capable of success 

6. My colleagues believe every student, regardless of their background and life circumstances, is capable 
of success 

7. My students have the opportunity to learn digital citizenship, social, life and employment skills as 
outlined in the KSD Learner Profile 

8. I feel I have a voice in school/department decisions 

9. I participate in formal collaborative conversations with my colleagues in my grade level or subject area 

10. At my school we regularly used data to inform decisions 

11. I have the opportunity to learn and implement best practices at my school 

12. My supervisor is responsive to feedback 

13. My supervisor frequently visits my classroom 

14. My supervisor frequently provides me with feedback about my instructional/professional practice 

15. My supervisor supports my professional learning community, collaboration time, or department team 
meetings to discuss student growth 

Response Scale:
• Strongly agree
• Agree
• Disagree
• Strongly disagree 



Survey Highlights
Instructional Staff Questions 

Question 2024 
Results

% strongly 
agree/agree 

2023 
Results

% strongly 
agree/agree 

 

2022 
Results

% strongly 
agree/agree 

 
My school has high expectations for student academics 85.07% 85.29% --
My school has high expectations for student behavior 71.83% 72.53% --
The adults at my school respect students 91.98% 93.52% --
The students at my school respect adults 71.20% 71.84% 71.47%
I believe every student, regardless of their background and life 
circumstances, is capable of success 

98.55% 99.44% --

My colleagues believe every student, regardless of their 
background and life circumstances, is capable of success 

89.07% 88.44% -- 

My students have the opportunity to learn digital citizenship, 
social, life and employment skills as outlined in the KSD 
Learner Profile 

87.10% 87.96% 79.13%



Staff Wellness Committee

Committee Activities: 
• Focus on collecting and sharing information 

regularly with all staff via email, monthly 
district newsletters, social media, etc.

• Share access to free mental health supports 
for all staff and families.

• Collect, review and share additional access 
to health care benefits from our insurance 
provider.

• Collect, review and share other physical 
fitness activities and healthy living ideas with 
employees.

• Review annual staff survey data and give 
input on what data might be good to collect in 
future surveys.

Members:  
Toni Neidhold – Director of Human Resources (facilitator)
Jesus Barajas – Benefits Specialists 
Piper Burris – Paraeducator, Amistad Elementary 
Rama Devagupta – Teacher, Southridge High School
Gaby Epperson – Teacher, Eastgate Elementary
Amanda Kerr – School Psychologist 
Desiree Martinez –Principal, Highlands Middle School
Margaret Melick – Teacher, Kamiakin High School
Kayla Monroe – Assistant Principal, Kennewick High School
Scott Pfleiger – Counselor, Ridge View Elementary 
Naomi Puckett – Principal, Ridge View Elementary
Brandie Tapia – Teacher, Chinook Middle School
Benet Toon – ASB Secretary, Horse Heaven Hills Middle School 



Staff Recognition 

• Building level/supervisor level 
activities

• Formal and informal district level 
awards

• Board meeting recognition
• “Kudos” and “Shout outs” 
• Years of Service Employee 

Recognition Program
• Annual Retiree celebration 



Staff Professional Growth and Performance 
Evaluation



Teachers/Certificated Staff Building Administrators Central Office Administrators 

State 8 Criteria/Danielson Framework State 8 Criteria/AWSP Framework WASA Framework
1. Centering instruction on high expectations for 

student achievement
2. Demonstrating effective teaching practices
3. Recognizing individual student learning needs 

and developing strategies to address those 
needs

4. Providing clear and intentional focus on 
subject matter content and curriculum

5. Fostering and managing a safe, positive 
learning environment

6. Using multiple student data elements to 
modify instruction and improve student 
learning

7. Communicating and collaborating with parents 
and the school community

8. Exhibiting collaborative and collegial practices 
focused on improving instructional practice 
and student learning. 

1. Creating a school culture that promotes the 
ongoing improvement of learning and teaching for 
students and staff

2. Demonstrating commitment to closing the 
achievement gap

3. Providing for school safety;
4. Leading the development, implementation, and 

evaluation of a data-driven plan for increasing 
student achievement, including the use of multiple 
student data elements;

5. Assisting instructional staff with alignment of 
curriculum, instruction, and assessment with state 
and local district learning goals

6. Monitoring, assisting, and evaluating effective 
instruction and assessment practices

7. Managing both staff and fiscal resources to 
support student achievement and legal 
responsibilities 

8. Partnering with the school community to promote 
student learning. 

Effective Leadership
a) Focus on Student Learning
b) Dynamic and Distributive Leadership
c) Sustained Improvement Efforts 

Quality Teaching and Learning Support
a) Quality Classroom Instruction 
b) Coordinated and Aligned Curriculum and 

Assessment 
c) Coordinated and Job-Embedded 

Professional Development 

System-Wide Improvement
a) Effective Use of Data 
b) Strategic Allocation of Resources 
c) Policy and Program Coherence

Clear and Collaborative Relationships 
a) Professional Culture and Collaborative 

Relationships
b) Clear Understanding of School and District 

Roles and Responsibilities
c) Engaging the Community and Managing 

External Environment 

Danielson Domains
1. Planning and Preparation
2. Learning Environments
3. Learning Experiences
4. Principled Teaching 

AWSP Criteria
1. Creating a Culture
2. Ensuring School Safety
3. Planning with Data
4. Aligning Curriculum
5. Improving Instruction
6. Managing Resources
7. Engaging Families & 

Communities
8. Closing the Gap 



Superintendent Board of Directors 

Washington Standards-Based  Framework Washington School Board Standards 
1. Mission, Vision, and Core Values: Effective educational leaders 

develop, advocate, and enact a shared mission, vision, and core values of 
high-quality education and academic success and well-being of each 
student. 

2. Equity and Cultural Responsiveness: Effective educational leaders 
strive for equity of educational opportunity and culturally responsive 
practices to promote each student’s academic success and well-being. 

3. Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment: Effective educational 
leaders develop and support intellectually rigorous and coherent systems 
of curriculum, instruction, and assessment to promote each student’s 
academic success and well-being. 

4. Community of Care and Support for Students: Effective educational 
leaders cultivate an inclusive, caring, and supportive school community 
that promotes the academic success and well-being of each student. 

5. Professional Capacity of School Personnel: Effective educational 
leaders develop the professional capacity and practice of school 
personnel to promote each student’s academic success and well-being.

6. Meaningful Engagement of Families and Community: Effective 
educational leaders engage families and the community in meaningful, 
reciprocal, and mutually beneficial ways to promote each student’s 
academic success and well-being.

7. Operations and Management: Effective educational leaders manage 
school operations and resources to promote each student’s academic 
success and well-being.

8. Collaboration with the Board: Effective educational develop positive 
working relationships and procedures that help the board of directors to 
promote each student’s academic success and well-being.

1. Responsible School District Governance
2. Communication of and Commitment to High Expectations for Student 

Learning 
3. Creating Conditions District-wide for Student and Staff Success 
4. Holding the District Accountable for Student Learning
5. Engagement of the Community in Education



Professional Growth and Evaluation Process

Reflection and self-
assessment using 

framework

Goal setting with 
supervisor

Observation and 
formative feedback

Data analysis and 
review with supervisor

Summative written 
evaluation 



New Web-Based Tool
Supporting Teacher-Principal Evaluation Program (TPEP)

• Request for proposals released 
November 2024

• Committee of district/building 
level administrators reviewed 
submittals and piloted programs

• Committee choose Pivot from 
Five Star Technologies 

• System training: Summer 2025



Evaluation Training for Classified Supervisors 

• Effective professional growth 
and evaluation processes

• Consistency of expectations 
• Appropriate 

completion/compliance
• Ongoing assistance and 

oversight



Board Comments and Questions



Appendix A: 
2024 Annual Staff Survey Results  



Powered by

Q1: I feel like I am a part of my building/department
• Answered: 1311   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q2: I feel connected to my co-workers
• Answered: 1311   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q3: I know what my supervisor expects of me
• Answered: 1311   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q4: I feel safe at work
• Answered: 1311   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q5: I have opportunities to connect with colleagues
• Answered: 1311   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q6: I am provided opportunities to learn and grow in my job

• Answered: 1311  

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q7: I feel a sense of belonging at work
• Answered: 1311   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q8: My supervisors value my feedback
• Answered: 1311   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q9: My supervisors are invested in the success of the team
• Answered: 1311   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q10: My co-workers and I are held to high standards of professionalism and performance

• Answered: 1311   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q11: I am happy at work
• Answered: 1311   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q12: I am included in the activities of my building/department
• Answered: 1311   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q13: I find my work meaningful
• Answered: 1311   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q14: I am treated with respect in my job
• Answered: 1311   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q15: My job utilizes my skills and abilities
• Answered: 1311   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q16: I feel like we have a positive culture in my building/department
• Answered: 1311

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Additional Questions 
for Instructional Staff 



Powered by

Q21: My school has high expectations for student academics
• Answered: 683

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q22: My school has high expectations for student behavior
• Answered: 685   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q23: The adults at my school respect students
• Answered: 686

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q24: The students at my school respect adults

• Answered: 684

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q25: I believe every student, regardless of their background and life circumstances, is 
capable of success
• Answered: 688   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q26: My colleagues believe every student, regardless of their background and life 
circumstances, is capable of success
• Answered: 686

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q27: My students have the opportunity to learn digital citizenship, social, life and 
employment skills as outlined in the KSD Learner Profile
• Answered: 682

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q28: I feel I have a voice in school/department decisions
• Answered: 687   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q29: I participate in formal collaborative conversations with my colleagues in my grade level 
or subject area
• Answered: 686

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q30: At my school we regularly use data to inform decisions
• Answered: 683   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q31: I have the opportunity to learn and implement best practices at my school

• Answered: 682  

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q32: My supervisor is responsive to feedback
• Answered: 686   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q33: My supervisor frequently visits my classroom
• Answered: 684   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree

Not applicable



Powered by

Q34: My supervisor frequently provides me with feedback about my 
instructional/professional practice
• Answered: 683   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree



Powered by

Q35: My supervisor supports my professional learning community, collaboration time, or 
department team meetings to discuss student growth
• Answered: 684

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree


	Agenda School Board Meeting 04 09 25
	CONSENT ITEMS
	Minutes School Board Meeting 03 26 25
	Personnel Action Items - Certificated
	Personnel Action Items - Classified
	Personnel Action Items - Extracurricular
	Budget Status Report Ending February 28, 2025
	Payroll and Vouchers Ending February 28, 2025

	REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS
	Annual Human Resources Report




